Public Document Pack

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 14 June 2023

Attendance:

Councillors Rutter (Chairperson)

Edwards Gordon-Smith

Achwal V Laming Cunningham Small

Other Members that did address the meeting:

Councillors Morris and Warwick

Other Members that did not address the meeting:

Councillor Wise

Full recording of the meeting.

1. APOLOGIES AND DEPUTY MEMBERS

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Lee, with Councillor Wallace attending as standing deputy member and from Councillor Read, with Councillor Pearson attending as standing deputy member.

2. **DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST**

Councillor Laming declared a personal (but not prejudicial) interest in respect of item 7 (116 Olivers Battery Road South, Olivers Battery, Winchester – case number 23/00288/FUL) due to his role as Ward Member and had attended the meeting of the parish council when they considered the application. However, he had taken no part in discussions regarding the application, therefore he took part in the consideration of this item and voted thereon.

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 24 May 2023 be approved and adopted.

4. WHERE APPROPRIATE, TO ACCEPT THE UPDATE SHEET AS AN ADDENDUM TO THE REPORT

The committee agreed to receive the Update Sheet as an addendum to the report.

5. PLANNING APPLICATIONS (WCC ITEMS 6-8) (REPORT AND UPDATE SHEET REFERS)

A copy of each planning application decision is available to view on the council's website under the respective planning application.

The committee considered the following items:

Applications outside the area of the South Downs National Park (WCC):

6. WILLOW TREE STABLES, FOREST ROAD, DENMEAD, HAMPSHIRE, PO7 6UG (CASE NUMBER: 23/00063/FUL)

Proposal Description: Item 6: Continued use of storage building as a dog grooming salon (sui generis)

The application was introduced. Members were referred to the Update Sheet which set out two points of clarification regarding use.

During public participation, Councillor Kevin Andreoli (Denmead Parish Council) spoke in David Whitmarsh spoke in objection to the application and Robert Tutton (agent) spoke in support of the application and answered Members' questions thereon.

The Committee proceeded to ask questions and debate the application.

RESOLVED:

The committee agreed to grant permission for the reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report and the Update Sheet, subject to the following:

 (i) An additional condition (4) requiring details regarding the disposal of greywater to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The exact wording delegated to the Chair of Planning Committee in consultation with the Service Lead: Built Environment.

7. <u>116 OLIVERS BATTERY ROAD SOUTH, OLIVERS BATTERY, WINCHESTER, SO22 4HB</u> (CASE NUMBER: 23/00288/FUL)

Proposal Description: Item 7: New detached 1.5 storey 5 bedroom dwelling and detached garage, following demolition of existing dwelling. (Revised submission to approved 22/00354/HOU to facilitate replacement of entire dwelling)

The case officer announced that members of the committee had recently undertaken a site visit to view the proposal from the road and from neighbouring properties at 114 and 118 Olivers Battery Road South to understand its impact on the surrounding area.

The application was introduced. Members were referred to the Update Sheet which set out in full an Air Quality Statement and Dust Management Plan submitted by the applicant in accordance with the requirement of the Air Quality Supplementary Planning Document and associated changes to Condition 10; amendments to Conditions 3, 5 (drainage), 8 (BEP) and the removal of Condition 6 (energy and water efficiency).

During public participation, Susan Summers, Belinda Wasylciw and Councillor Rona Blundell (Olivers Battery Parish Council) spoke in objection to the application and Louise Cutts (agent) spoke in support of the application and answered Members' questions thereon.

Councillor Warwick spoke as a Ward Member and answered Members' questions thereon.

In summary, Councillor Warwick thanked the committee for visiting the site, stated that she was speaking in objection to the application and raised the following points:

- Provided some background of the setting of Olivers Battery Road South
 which largely comprised of a central core of two storey houses surrounded
 by low density one storey bungalows with open plan gardens. The proposed
 development sits on the edge of the central core between two single storey
 bungalows.
- Local residents had raised objection to the increased roof height of the new building (at 7.9m from the original 5.4 m) and were concerned that the increased height and bulk of the new structure would dominate the streetscene and have a detrimental impact on their properties.
- In addition, there was concern was that the additional height and new windows would reduce the privacy of neighbouring properties and the enjoyment of their homes. Therefore, it was suggested that consideration be given to adequate landscape screening options for all affected properties.
- Contrary to Oliver's Battery Village Design Statement and Policy CP13

- Following the original application last year, concerns about the planning process in this case have also been raised by local residents and the importance of the reasons why there was no objections to the original application except from the parish council as nearby residents all advise they were not notified of this application in writing last year and that no orange signs were displayed outside the property so they were not aware of proposals to replace the bungalow with a five bedroomed house, by the time they were aware, planning permission had already been granted.
- Relevant to this application it would have been useful to have the written report of the council's building control team regarding the condition of the remaining walls before they were demolished to understand why they could not be used.
- In conclusion, Councillor Warwick requested that the committee consider adding a condition to include screening planting between all affected properties, including those to the east.

For clarification during questions, the council's legal advisor reminded the committee that it was not a relevant to guery the motives or reasoning of why the applicant had submitted the proposal in the determination of this application.

Following further questions, the planning officer clarified that the applicant had confirmed that they would be willing to accept the amended condition to restrict the rooflights to the north and south roofslopes to top opening only to mitigate any overlooking concerns raised by neighbouring properties.

The Committee proceeded to ask questions and debate the application.

RESOLVED:

The committee agreed to grant permission for the reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report and the Update Sheet and verbal update, subject to the following:

(i) An amendment to condition 9 to include the protection of the silver birch tree during the construction of the garage and its retention thereafter.

ALDI FOODSTORE LTD, 2 BURNETT CLOSE, WINCHESTER, HAMPSHIRE, 8. **SO22 5JQ**

(CASE NUMBER: 23/00449/FUL)

Proposal Description: Item 8: Application Reference Number: APP/L1765/A/08/2081079 (08/00279/FUL) Date of Decision: 26/02/2023 To vary Condition 17 to allow the store to receive deliveries between 08:00 to 19:00 on Sundays and Public Holidays.

Propose that the wording of the condition is amended as follows: No deliveries shall be taken at or dispatched from the site except between the hours of 07:00-10:00 and 12:00 -22:00 hours on Saturdays, and 08:00 - 19:00 hours on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

The application was introduced. Members were referred to the Update Sheet which set out in full an additional condition in relation to the electrical power supply and refrigeration unit, amendments to Condition 3 and Condition 6 and the deletion of Condition 5. update to the reason for refusal 1.

During public participation, Graham Matthews spoke in objection to the application and Alan Williams (agent) spoke in support of the application and answered Members' questions thereon.

Councillor Morris spoke as a Ward Member and answered Members' questions thereon.

In summary, Councillor Morris made reference to the additional condition, set out within the Update Sheet, in respect of the installation of an electrical power supply and refrigeration unit which he fully supported.

Councillor Morris stated that he considered that the additional condition was necessary to mitigate resident's concerns, would ensure compliance with delivery conditions and the quiet delivery scheme. He was also fully supportive that the engine powering the refrigeration unit be switched off for the duration of a delivery taking place with the installation of an electrical power supply for delivery vehicles to connect to in the service bay area. Councillor Morris stated that the installation and operation of this facility would help to mitigate issues of noise and air pollution and he urged the committee to agree the additional condition, as set out in the Update Sheet, if minded to approve the application.

The Committee proceeded to ask questions and debate the application.

RESOLVED:

The committee agreed to grant permission for the reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report and the Update Sheet, subject to an amendment to the additional condition within the Update Sheet to remove the words 'can be' and replace with the words 'shall be' in respect of the refrigeration unit being turned off.

The meeting commenced at 9.30 am and concluded at 11.50 am

Chairman

